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THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

August 22. 1974 

Dear lvir. Attorney General: 

By this letter I am requesting your legal op1ruon 
concerning papers and other historical materials 
retained by the White House during the administration 
of former President Richard M. Nixon and now in the 
possession of the United States or its officials. Some 
such materials were left in the Executive Office Building 
or in the White House at the time of former President Nixon1s 
departure; others had previously been deposited with the 
Adnri.nistrator of General Services. 

I would like your advice concerning ownership of these 
materials and the obligations of the government with 
respect to subpoenas or court orders issued against the 
government or its officials pertaining to them.. 

Sincerely. 

Gerald R. Ford 

The Honorable William B. Saxbe 
The Attorney General 
Washington, D. C. 

/ 



Deportment 
to. _:.:N::::..r_:_. _B_uc_h_en ____ of the T reosu ry 

Office of the 
916174 General Counsel room. ___ date, 

Attached is a copy of the 

subpoena served on September 4 

on Mr. Knight, the Director of the 

Secret Service, at the request of 

the attorneys for Mr. Ehrlichman. 

General Counsel 
Richard R. Albrecht 
room 3000 
ext. 2093 
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DISTHICT O F COLUMBIA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
No. 74-110 

\'. 

JOHN M. W.JTCIIELL, et al, 

To H. S. I<N GHT p Director, United Stat s Sec r et Service, 
as Custodian of Presidential Papers (White House Files), 
The White House 
Vfashington, D. C. 

. .. 
rJ ·' 1' ''1 • '' ~-I 

Ct· Fvr HI i~ • ·2l '( . ·. 

You arc hereby commanded to appear in the United States District Court for the 

D~strict of Colwnbia at John Marshall and Constitution in the city of 

Washington, D. C. on the 16th dar of September 19 74 at 10:00 o'clock A . M. 

to tc3tify in the case of United States v. Mitchell, et al and bring with you 

(SEE ATTACHED) 

This subpoena is issued upon application of thet Defendant.· Ehrlichman. 

ANDREW C. HALL 

Attorney /tn' John D. Ehrlichman 
• __ (>_9. .. 1\".!___:f.l~ &.l~_r_St..r eet _______ _ 

Mi:a'tin~~ Florida 33130 

• Insert "United States," or "defendant" as the case may be. 

RETUilN 

R~ccived this subpoena at 
~doo ~ 
served it on the within named 
by dclh·crin~ a copy to h and tendering to h 
<tf!e :-tlloweu by law.2 

D.:tcd: 
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on 

the fee for one day's attendance and the mile-

• l~c!'~ n11d mil• .. ,. r-{,•,! Ja.l l>t' l •t .. f,·n·•l to the wil r,.·~n upon :;cn•ac·l! of n suhpncn!\ i~:>UI'(l tn llt'lllll! ot lf:<' 1 IIIU:u ::.t'·l•· 
or nn o:hn·r o1· ;:,:,·~ocy lh:·n·nf. : ... l' ~;c lti~!J. 
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ATT ACll vTENT TO S\1 HPOEN.t\ TO PHODUCE 

1. Not es of Presidential conversations of John D. Ehrlichman f~om 
June 17, 1972. lo and including May 1, 1973, which are stored in 
reddish-brown binders. 

2. The chronological file of correspondence and memoranda of John D. 
Ehrlichman from. June 17, 1972. to and including May 1, 1973. 

3. All personal papers of John D. Ehrlichman prepared or received 
from June 17, 1972. to and including May 1, 1973 which refer to or 
_relate to the following : 

(a) The Watergate burglary. 

(b) The proposal for the develop.rnent of and the implementation 
of intelligence gathering activities for the Committee for 
the Re-election of the President . 

(c) The activities of Donald Segretti. 

(d) The investigation and activities in connection therewith 
of the "Watergate affair''. 

(e) All tape recordings of Presidential conversations involving 
a discussion o.f-the 11Wa-tergate matter". . . 

(f) The logs of telephone calls received or placed by Richard M. 
Nixon from June 17, 1972 to and including May 1, 1973. 

(g) The logs of telephone calls received or placed by H. R. 
Haldeman from June 17, 1972 to and including May 1, 1973. 

(h) The logs of telephone calls received or placed by John D. 
Ehrlichrnan from June 17, . 1972 to and including May 1, 1973. 

{i) The visitors' logs and/or appointment logs of Richard M. Nixon 
from June 17,197~ to a~d including May 1, 1973. 

(j) The visitors ' logs and/or appointment logs of H. R. Haldeman 
from June 17, 1972 to and including May 1, 1973. 

(k) The visitors logs and/or appoittt6nent logs of John D. 
Ehrlichman fron1 June 17, 1972/ and includin& May 1, 1973. 

(l) Any <J.nd all records of any person, mai:'ltaincd at the White 
House, which r efer io or relate to the "\\"atergate n1atlc r" 
fro m June 17, 1972 to ancl .including .i\-!ay l. 1973. 



®ffirr nf 14r 1\Unrnry <@rnrrnl 
lltttal}ingtnn. m. a:. 

September 6, 1974 

The President, 

The White House. 

Dear Mr. President: 

You have requested my opinion concerning papers and 

other historical materials retained by the White House 

Office during the administration of former President 

Richard M. Nixon and now in the possession of the United 

States or its officials. Some such materials were left 

in the Executive Office Building or in the White House at 

the time of former President Nixon's departure; others had 

previously been deposited with the Administrator of General 

Services. You have inquired concerning the ownership of 

such materials and the obligations of the Government with 

respect to subpoenas and court orders addressed to the 

United States or its officials pertaining to them. 

To conclude that such materials are not the property 

of former President Nixon would be to reverse what has 

apparently been the almost unvaried 



three branches of the Government since the beginning of 

the Republic, and to call into question the practices of 

our Presidents since the earliest times. In Folsom v. 

Marsh, 9 F. Cas. 342 (No. 4901), 2 Story 100, 108-109 

(C.C.D. Mass. 1841), Mr. Justice Story, while sitting in 

circuit, found that President Washington's letters, 
1/ 

including his official correspondence, were his private 

property which he could bequeath, which his estate could 

alienate, and in which the purchaser could acquire a 

copyright. According to testimony of the Archivist of 

the United States in 1955, every President of the United 

!I The official documents involved in the case were: 
Letters addressed by Wash~ngton, as commander­

in-chief, to the President of Congress. 
Official letters to governors of States and 

speakers of legislative bodies. 
Circular letters. 
General orders. 
Communications (official) addressed as President 

to his Cabinet. 
Letter accepting the command of the army, on our 

expected war with France. 2 Story at 104-105. 
The clear holding on the property point (Id. at 108-09) 
is arguably converted to dictum by Justice Story's 
later indication, in connection with another issue, 
that copyright violation with respect to the official 
documents did not have to be established in order to 
maintain the suit. (Id. at 114). 
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States beginning with George Washington regarded all the 

papers and historical materials which accumulated in the 

White House during his administration, whether of a private 
2/ 

or official nature, as his own property. A classic 

exposition of this Presidential view was set forth by 

President Taft in a lecture presented several years after 

he had left the White House: 

The office of the President is not a record­
ing office. The vast amount of correspondence that 
goes through it, signed either by the President or 
his secretaries, does not become the property or a 
record of the government unless it goes on to the 
official files of the department to which it may be 
addressed. The President takes with him all the 
correspondence, original and copies, carried on 
during his administration. Taft, The Presidency 
30-31 (1916). 

1/ Statement of Dr. Wayne C. Grover, Archivist of the 
United States, during the House Hearings on the Joint 
Resolution of August 12, 1955, 69 Stat. 695, To provide 
for the acceptance and maintenance of Presidential 
iibraries, and for other purposes (now codified in 44 
U.S.C. 2101, 2107 and 2108; hereinafter referred to as 
the "Presidential Libraries Act''}, Hearing before a 
Special Subcommittee of the Committee on Government 
Operations, House of Representatives, 84th Cong., 1st 
Sess., on H.J. Res. 330, H.J. Res. 331, and H.J. Reso 332 
(hereafter referred to as "1955 Hearings"), pp. 28, 45. 
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Past Congressional recognition of the President 1s title is 

evidenced by the various statutes providing for Government 

purchase of the official and private papers of many of our 

early P~esidents, including Washington, Jefferson, Madison, 

Monroe and Jackson. See 1955 Hearings at 28, 39-42. 

Even if there were no recent statutory sanction of 

Presidential ownership, a consistent history such as that 

described above might well be determinative. As the Supreme 

Court said in United States v. Midwest Oil Co., 236 U.S. 

459 (1915): 

[G]overment is a practical affair intended for 
practical men. Both officers, law-makers and 
citizens naturally adjust themselves to any long­
continued action of the Executive Department--on 
the presumption that unauthorized acts would not 
have been allowed to be so often repeated as to 
crystallize into a regular practice. That pre­
sumption is not reasoning in a circle but the 
basis of a wise and quieting rule that in 
determining the meaning of a statute or the 
existence of a power, weight shall be given to 
the usage itself--even when the validity of the 
practice is the subject of investigation. Id. at 
472-73. 

• • • 
[W]hile no ••• express authority has been granted 
[by Congress], there is nothing in the nature of 
the power exercised which prevents Congress from 
granting it by implication just as could be done 
by any other owner of property under similar con­
ditions. Id. at 474. 
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Moreover, with respect to the practice at issue here, 

there is recent statutory sanction. The 1955 Presidential 

Libraries Act, which serves as the permanent basis of the 

Presidential Library system, constitutes clear legislative 

acknowledgement that a President has title to all the docu-

ments and historical materials--whether personal or official--

which accumulate in the White House Office during his incum-

bency. The Federal Records Act of 1950, 64 Stat. 587, which 

was the predecessor of the Presidential Libraries Act, 

authorized the Administrator of General Services to accept 

for deposit ''the personal papers and other personal historical 

documentary materials of the present President of the United 

States." Section 507(e), 64 Stat. 588. The word "personal" 

might have been read as intended to distinguish between the 
3/ 

private and official papers of the President.- The corres-

pending provision of the current law, however, 44 u.s.c. 2107(1), 

avoids the ambiguity. It envisions the President's deposit of 

all Presidential materials, not only personal ones. During 

3/ Compare Section 507(e) with Section 507(a), dealing with the 
records of an agency. A memorandum prepared in the Office of 
the Assistant Solicitor General (now Office of Legal Counsel) on 
July 24, 1951 indicated that such a distinction between private 
and official Presidential papers would be inconsistent with 
historic precedents, and difficult if not impossible to main­
tain. It accordingly regarded the Records Act's use of the 
term "personal" as intended merely to exclude the perma tfD#~ 
files of the Chief Executive Clerk discussed at page 1 :l>elow:o : ~~ 

·- 5 - ~ :. 
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the House debate on the Presidential Libraries Act, Congress-

man Moss, who was in charge of the bill, expressly stated: 

Four. Finally, it should be remembered that 
Pr~sidential papers belong to the President, and 
that they have increased tremendously in volume 
in the past 25 or 30 years. It is no longer 
possible for a President to take his papers home 
with him and care for them properly. It is no 
accident that the last three Presidents--Hoover, 
F. D. Roosevelt, and Harry Truman--have had to 
make special provisions through the means of the 
presidential library to take care of their papers. 
101 Gong. Rec. 9935 (1955). 

The legislative history of the Act reflects no disagreement 

with this position on the part of any member of the Congress. 

The hearings before a Special Subcommittee of the House 

Committee on Government Operations indicate congressional 

awareness of the Act's assumptio~ that all Presidential 

papers are the private property of the President. 1955 

Hearings at 12, 20, 28, 32, 52, 54, 58. 

A recent discussion concerning ownership of Presi-

dential materials appears in the report prepared by the ' 

staff of the Joint Comnittee on Internal Revenue Taxation 
L-FORb~· 

invo 1 ving the examination of President Nixon's tax re tu t ~~ ~~ \ 

H. Rept. 93-966, 93d Gong., 2d Sess. {1974). The report~~ 

points to the practice of Presidents since Washington of 

treating their papers, both private and official, as their 

- 6 -



personal property; and to the congressional ratification 

of the practice in the 1955 library legislation. It 

concludes that "the historical precedents taken together 
. 

with the provisions set forth in the Presidential Libraries 

Act, suggest that the papers of President Nixon are con-

sidered his personal property rather than public property. 11 

Id. at 28-29. 

An apparent obstacle to Presidential ownership of all 

White House materials is Article II, section 1, clause 7 

of the Constitution, which provides: 

"The President shall, at stated times, receive 
for his services a compensation, which shall neither 
be increased nor diminished during the period for 
which he shall have been elected, and he shall not 
receive within that period any other emolument from 
the United States, or any of them." 

But objection based upon this provision is circular in 

its reasoning, except insofar as it applies to the blank 

typing paper and materials upon which the Presidential 

records are inscribed. For the records themselves are 

given to the President as an nemolument" only if one 

assumes that they are not the property of the President 

from the very moment of their creation. As for the blank 

typing paper and materials, which are of course 

- 7 -



value, they can be regarded as consumables, like electricity 

or telephone service, provided for the conduct of Presidential 

business. In any event, the Constitutional provision can 

simply not be interpreted in such a fashion as to preclude 

the conferral of anything of value, beyond his salary, upon 

the President. An eminent authority on the subject states 

the following: 

As a matter of fact the President enjoys many 
more "emoluments" from the United States than the 
"compensation" which he receives "at stated times" 
--at least, what most people would reckon to be 
emoluments. Corwin, The President 348 n. 53. 

He gives as examples of such additional emolUments provided 

by the Congress the use of personal secretaries and the 

right to reside in the White House. Id. at 348-49. 

Another obstacle to Presidential ownership of the 

materials in question is their character as public docu-

ments, often secret and sometimes necessary for the 

continued operation of government. However, without 

speaking to the desirability of the established property 

rule (and there is pending in the Congress legislation 

which would apparently alter it-•S. 2951, 93d Cong., 2d 

Sess., a bill 11 [t]o provide for public ownership of 

certain documents of elected puolic officials~'), it 

- 8 



be conceded that accommodation of such concerns can be 

achieved whether or not ownership of the materials in 

question rests with the former President. Historically, 

there h~s been consistent acknowledgement that Presidential 

materials are peculiarly affected by a public interest 

which may justify subjecting the absolute ownership rights 

of the ex-President to certain limitations directly related 

to the character of the documents as records of government 

activity. Thus, in Fol~ v. Marsh, supra, Mr. Justice 

Story stated the following: 

In respect to official letters, addressed to 
the government, or any of its departments, by public 
officers, so far as the right of the government ex­
tends, from principles of public policy, to withhold 
them from publication, or to give them publicity, 
there may be a just ground o,f distinction. It may be 
doubtful, whether any public officer is at liberty to 
publish them, at least, in the same age, when secrecy 
~y be required by the public exigencies, without the 
sanction of the government. On the other hand, from 
the nature of the public service, or the character 
of the documents, embracing historical, military, or 
diplomatic information, it may be the right, and 
even the duty, of the government, to give them 
publicity, even against the will of the writers. 
2 Story at 113. 

That portion of the Criminal Code dealing with the trans-

mission or loss of national security information, 18 u.s.c. 

§ 793, obviously applies to Presidential papers 

- 9 -



4/ 
they are within the possession of the former President. 

Upon the death of Franklin D. Roosevelt during the closing 

months of World War II, with full acceptance of the 

traditional view that all White House papers belonged to 

the President and devolved to his estate, some of the 

papers dealing with prosecution of the War (the so-called 

"Map Room Papers") were retained by President Truman under 

a theory of "protective custody" until December 1946. 

Matt~r of Roosevelt, 190 Misc. 341, 344, 73 N.Y.S. 821, 825 

(Sur. Ct. 1947);·Eighth Annual Report of the Archivist of 

the United States as to the Franklin D. Roosevelt Library 

(1947) p. 1. Thus, regardless of whether this is the best 

way to approach the problem, precedent demonstrates that the 

governmental interests arising because of the peculiar nature 

of these materials (notably, any need to protect national 

security information and any need for continued use of 

certain documents in the process of government) can be 

protected in-full conformity with the theory of ownership 

on the part of the ex-President. 

4 / Section 11 of Executive Order 11652 makes explicit 
provision for declassification of Presidential material 
that has been deposited in the Archives. 

- 10 -



-
Because the principle of Presidential ownership of 

White House materials has been acknowledged by all three 

branches of the Government from the earliest times; because 

that principle does not violate any provision of the 

Constitution or contravene any existing statute; and because 

that principle is not inconsistent with adequate protection 

of the interests of the United States; I conclude that the 

papers and materials in question were the property of 

Richard M. Nixon when his term of office ended. Any 

inference that the former President abandoned his ownership 

of the materials he left in the White House and the 

Executive Office Building is eliminated by a memorandum to 

the White House staff from Jerry ~· Jones, Special Assistant 

to President Nixon, dated the day of his resignation, 

asserting that "the files of the White House Office belong 

to the President in whose Administration they were 

accumulated,., and setting forth instructions with respect 

to the treatment of such materials until they can be 

collected and disposed of according to the ex-President's 

wishes. We are advised that the materials previously 

deposited with the Administrator of General Services were_........-- . . 
/'t;,• fOq~ 

likewise transmitted and received with the understandin~> ~~ 
~~-

""'' ___ _..</#'" - 11 -



more extensive factual and historical inquiry, which your 

need for this opinion does not permit. Of course, even if 

such inquiry should show that these particular documents have 

' 
been regarded as Government property, that conclusion would 

not support a generalization of Government ownership with 

respect to the much more extensive other material covered by 

this opinion, as to which the Presidential practice and con-

gressional acquiesence are clear. 

As to the obligations of the Government with respect to 

subpoenas and court orders directed to the United States or 

its officials pertaining to the subject materials: Even 

though the Government is merely the custodian and not the 

owner, it can properly be subjecteq to court directives 

relating to the materials. The Federal Rules of Criminal 

Procedure authorize the courts, upon motion of a defendant, 

to order the Government to permit access to papers and other 

objects "which are within the possession, custody or control 

of the government. II Fed. R. Crim. P. 16(b). A 0 • • 

similar provision is applicable with regard to discovery in 

civil cases involving material within the 11possession, 

custody or control" of a party (including the 
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Fed. R. Civ. P. 34(a). In addition, in both criminal and 

civil cases, a subpoena may be issued directing a person to 

produce documents or objects which are within his possession, 

but which belong to another person. Fed. R. Crim. P. 17(c); 

Fed. R. Civ. P. 45(b). See, ~.g., Couch v. United States, 

409 U.S. 322 (1973); Schwimmer v. United States, 232 F.2d 

855, 860 (8th Cir., 1956), cert. denied, 352 U.S. 833; 

United States v. Re, 313 F. Supp. 442, 449 {S.D.N.Y. 1970). 

I advise you, therefore, that items included within the 

subject materials properly subpoenaed from the Government 

or its officials must be produced; and that none of the 

materials can be moved or otherwise disposed of contrary 

to the provisions of any duly issued court order against 

the Government or its officials pertaining to them. Of 

course both the former President and the Government can 

seek modification of such subpoenas and orders, and can 

challenge their validity on Constitutional or other grounds. 

Respectfully, 

At!:!:' ~er~ ~ 

14 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 10, 1974 

Dear Mr. Attorney General: 

You are hereby authorized to release for publication 

your opinion rendered to me on September 6,.1974 

concerning the ownership of certain papers and other 

historical materials retained by the White House Office 

during the administration of former President Nixon. 
' . 

Sincerely, 

~~~ 
· Counsel to the President 

Honorable William B. Saxbe 
The Attorney General 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

.. 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 10, 1974 

Re: United States v. National Broadcasting Company, Inc., 
(Civil 72-819-RJK C. D. Cal.); United States v. Columbia 
Broadcasting System, Inc., et al. , (Civil 72-820 -RJK 
C. D. Cal.); United States v. American Broadcasting 
Companies, Inc., (Civil 72-821-RJK C. D. Cal.) 

Dear Mr. Kauper: 

Your letter to me of this date requests answers to five questions 
which are needed for your response to the court's order in the 
above referenced case on September 16, 1974. As I am sure you 
are aware, it has not been possible to furnish the information 
in question until their legal status was determined by the Attorney 
General's opinion of September 7, 1974 and the letter of agree­
ment betwee:u. former President Nixon and GSA Administrator 
Sampson dated September 6, 1974 ("Nixon-Sampson Agreement"). 
Accordingly, the files in question are not within the custody or 
control of the White House and can only be provided in accordance 
with the above Nixon-Sampson Agreement, which, of course, 
makes provision for compliance with court orders. 

The answer to your first question ("Does your staff, or anyone, 
have the necessary access to the documents and tapes that is 
requil·ed for an answer?") is that only Mr. Nixon or his auth­
orized representative now has such access. 

Your second question is: "Approximately how many documents 
and how many tapes, sent or received during the period October 17, 
1969 to December 31, 1972, are involved?" No one on the White 



-2-

House staff now or, I am informed, at any time since the court's 
order issued, has had the knowledge or information necessary to 
answer this question. Given the very broad scope of the information 
sought in the interrogatories set forth in Mr. Silberman's letter of 
June 13, 1974 to Mr. Buzhardt, it would be impossible to answer 
this question without examining virtually every document and tape 
covered by this time period. 

Your third question is whether there is "a subject matter index to 
the files in question. " There is a subject matter index to the 
central files of the Nixon White House but the index itself would 
not necessarily be in sufficient detail to disclose the existence of 
all the information sought in the interrogatories. That index by 
no means covers all of the Nixon papers for the time period involved, 
for which there is no comprehensive index to my knowledge, and 
Mr. Buzhardt has informed me that he is not aware of any such index. 

Your fourth question is whether there is a subject matter index to 
the tapes. The answer is no. 

Honorable Thomas E. Kauper 
Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Sincerely, 

Counsel to the President 

• 
\ 
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<I 
SEP 1 0 1974 

... 

Honorable Pbilip W ~ B\tchen 
CO\UlMl to the Preaidea~ 
The Wbit:e House 
Room 106, Old Exaauti'Yfl Office Bldg'. 
waald.avton, o .. c. zosoo 

AteeaUon, Dudley H. ehapaan, Baqwift 

Rea United States •· National ~~ Conp-y, 
Ine., (Civil 72-llt-RJK C.D. Cal.)J UJiited St:aua 
v. Co118bia ~oaatlnq Byatea, Inc., at. al., 
(Civil 72-120-~ C.D. Cal.)J United Stataa v. 
Amerioan Broadcastinq Companies, Inc., (Civil 
72-121-RJX C.D. Cal.) 

Dear Mr. B\lchen a 

Reference ie made to the Department's let.~r• of June 13, 
June 21, JUDe 22, AQ.9Ua~ 5, an4 Auqust 21, lt74, concerning 
the above cases. Thaae lat.tera all related to the Court's 
oJ'Clar of hly 17, 1974, 41reo~ t.he Governmen~ to raapcmd , 
bo defendant•• ~terroqatories concerning White Bouse 4oauaents 
ud upea relai:.i.Dq to specifie4 matt.era. We reqae•'te4 that. 
the infor:aat.ion 80Q9htt in the defendanta' interroqatoriea be 
fumi8hed t.o us eo as te aoepl!' wi t:h the Court '• order. 

In view of the A~tomer Genezoal' • opinion of sep~.- 7, 
1974, an4 the letter agreement bet.waen former Pzeai4en~ Nixon 
and GSA A41ninlt1Ua't0r sampson dated September G, 1974, it. 1• 
now ~ated ~t. your office provide us with a et:at.ement which 
will deal with the feaelbllit.y of roar staff's providing us with 
a raeponH to dafend.ant.a' interrogatories. In t:hat. conftaot.ion, 
it. woulcl be appreciated if the au~t. would deal with the 
following quea~oaea 

(1) Does youJ: staff, or anyone, haft the necessary 
accasa to the documents and t.apea that. ia req ~o~ 
an anawer7 1 ~ 

Q: 
~ I» 

(2) Approximately how many ocuments bow ~Y 
tapeta, sent. or raaeived during the period 00t r 1 '/ 1969, 
i:o December 31, 1972, are involved? 1 



(3) la then a nbjen mat.tar index to the 4ooaents 
ia _..uoa?' an4 

(C) :ta there a nbjeot matter index to the tapea? 

Si.Bae some reaponae lllUait be made to the Court and defendant:• 
by aax1! Monday, Se,ptember 16. 1974, it. WO\tld be vezry ..,h app:n­
eiatect if you would give these qa•ationa your urtJeftt. atunt.ion. 

Slnoerely yoal'a, 

THOMAS E. KAUPER 
Auie~t: Attot:aey General 

Ant.itraat Divlaioa 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 10, 1974 

Re: United States v. National Broadcasting Company, Inc., 
(Civil 72-819-RJK C. D. Cal.); United States v. Colun1bia 
Broadcasting System, Inc., et al., (Civil 72-820-RJK 
C. D. Cal.); United States v. American Broadcasting 
Companies, Inc., (Civil 72-821-RJK C. D. Cal.) 

Dear Mr. Kauper: 

Your letter to me of this date requests answers to five questions 
which are needed for your response to the court's order in the 
above referenced case on September 16, 1974. As I am sure you 
are aware, it has not been possible to furnish the information 
in question until their legal status was determined by the Attorney 
General's opinion of September 7, 1974 and the letter of agree­
ment between former President Nixon and GSA Administrator 
Sampson dated September 6, 1974 ("Nixon-Sampson Agreement"). 
Accordingly, the files in question are not within the custody or 
control of the White House and can only be provided in accordance 
with the above Nixon-Sampson Agreement, which, of course, 
makes provision for compliance with court orders. 

The answer to your first question ("Does your staff, or anyone, 
have the necessary access to the documents and tapes that is 
required for an answer?") is that only Mr. Nixon or his auth­
orized representative now has such access. 

Your second question is: "Approximately how many documents 
and how many tapes, sent or received during the period October 17, 
1969 to December 31, 1972, are involved?" No one on the White 
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House staff now or, I am informed, at any time since the court's 
order is sued, has had the knowledge or information necessary to 
answer this question .. Given the very broad scope of the information 
sought in the interrogatories set forth in Mr. Silberman's letter of 
June 13, 1974 to Mr. Buzhardt, it would be impossible to answer 
this question without examining virtually every document and tape 
covered by this time period. 

Your third question is whether there is. "a subject matter index to 
the files in question. 11 There is a subject matter index to the 
central files of the Nixon White House but the index itself would 
not necessarily be in sufficient detail to disclose the existence of 
all the information sought in the interrogatories. That index by 
no means covers all of the Nixon papers for the time period involved, 
for which there is no comprehensive index to my knowledge, and 
Mr. Buzhardt has informed me that he is not aware of any such index. 

Your fourth question is whether there is a subject matter index to 
the tapes. The answer is no. 

Honorable Thomas E. Kauper 
Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Division 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530 

Sincerely, 

f%.~~ 
Counsel to the President 

• .. 

)·.· .. 

. · . . 
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Honorable Philip w. Buchen 
Counsel to the Presiden~ 
The Wnite House 
Room 106, Old Exeeutive Office Bldg-. 
Washington, D.C. 20500 

.. 

Attention' Dud1ey H. Chapman, Esquire 

SEP . 0 1974 

Re: United States v. National BroadaastdDq Company, 
Inc., (Civil 72-819-RJK C.D. Cal.); United Statea 
v . Columbia Broadcaaidnq Sys~em, Inc., et al •• 
(Civil 72-820-~ C.D. Cal.); United States v. 
Amerioan Bzoadcaat:.i.ng companies, Inc •• (Civil 
72-821-BJX c.D. cal.) 

Dear !-.Jr. Buchen 1 

Reference is made to the Department's letters of June 13, 
June 21, June 22, Augus~ 5, and August 21, 197 4, concerninq 
the above cases. These letters all related to the Court's 
order of July 17, 1974, directing the Government to respond 
to defendants• J.tlterrogatories concerning w1lite Bouse documents 
and tapes relatinq to specified matters. We requested that 
the infoxmat.ion soughtl in the defendants' interrogatories be 
furnished to us so aa to comply with the Couru•s order. 

In view of the Attorney General's opinion of september 7, 
1974, and the letter agreement between former President Nixon 
and GSA Administrator Sampson dated September 6, 1974, it is 
now requested that your office provide us with a statement which 
will deal with the feasibility of your staff's providing us with 
a response to defendants• interrogatories. In that connection, 
it would be appreciated if the statement would deal with the 
followinq questionsz 

(1) Does your staff, or anyone, have the necessary 
access to the documents and tapes that is required f!o~ 
an answer?; -t ~, -

(2) ApproxLntately how many documents and ow many 
tapes, sent or recelved durinq the period OctobeJ:: 17, ~'969, 
to December 31, 1972, are involved?; ___,, 

-



(3) ls b"lere a subject matter index to the documents 
in question?; and 

(4) Is there a subject matter index to the tapes? 

. Since some response must be made to the Court and defendants 
by next .Honday, Septembe.r 16 , 197 4 , it would be very much appre­
ciated if you would give these questions your urgent attention. 

Sincerely yours , 

THOMAS B. RAUPER 
Assistant Attorney General 

Antitrust Division 

/ 
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THE C t::NER•\L COUNSEL OF TH= THEASURY' \ w ,·. '... -

' .J 
WASHI~G roN. D.C. 202;::l .. , l• f"' 

J(~,.r· t v"' 
/i-

Dear l1r. Ja'l1orslti : 

"R·a• n . ... _. ~- ··~t .... '·,..,_·.,l '<> .. ., .. 
_ ... . .J' .. .., ll .. - ~ ,_ ·#.atr; ..t. ,. -..; t... Q.L 

7 

Uuit~i 3tatea Di3triet Cour t 
f or the District of ·Columbia 

No. 1 ~-110 

I understand tbat the subpoena i~ the above matter served on 
l!. S. !"~ight~ Di:®tor, United St3tes Secret Service,. on Sept.:aaQar 4, 
1974 ~ h.""t& been rafarrad to your o:ffiee for actian. 'nl!s letter 'Will 
con:stitlll:lil yOil-r authorization to rt!pr4!Sent Mr. Knight: in connectiou 
with the subpoeua and to make an appropriate tlotion to quash the 
aubpoema. 

Mr. I.eon .Jaworski. 
Yatergsta Special Prosecutor 
1.425 K Street, N. W. 
9th noor 
Washington, D. C. 20005 

Sineerely yours, 

( Si~ed) Richard R. Albrecht 

.· 

·; 



WATERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE 
United States Department of Justice 

1425 K Street. N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20005 

September 13, 1974 

Honorable Philip w. Buchen 
Counsel to the President 
The Y.Jhi te House 
Washington, D. C. 

Dear Mr. Buchen: 

I am writing to set forth our understanding of the 
situation as it was discussed and agreed during the meet­
ing yesterday afternoon attended by Messrs. Ruth, Voren­
berg and Kreindler of our Office, Messrs. Silberman and 
Wilderotter of the Department of Justice, Mr. Casselman 
of the White House legal staff, and the two of us. 

At that meeting we explained our objections and 
reservations concerning the basis and thrust of the 
Attorney General's opinion dated September 6, 1974, and 
the validity and effect of the letter agreement between 
former President Nixon and General Services Administrator 
Sampson, also dated September 6, 1974. Specifically, we 
noted that, even assuming the correctness of the Attorney 
General's opinion on the private ownership question, the 
opinion implies but does not develop a basis for guaran­
teeing the government's right to utilize those materials 
for the present legitimate interests of· the public. The 
letter agreement, however, makes no effort to secure or 
protect these public interests but rather purports to 
cede to Mr. Nixon the right of exclusive access to all 
tapes and documents and authorizes him to withdraw or 
destroy any or all of the tapes and documents without 
ever making them available for review by the government 
or people of the United States. We explained our reasons 
for believing that the September 6 agreement violates 
various provisions of the Presidential Libraries Act, on 
which it is apparently based, as well as the spirit of 
that statute. 

/ 
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In light of these serious problems, I believe you 
have gr~ited our request that no further action that might 
possibly affect adversely the interests of this Office 
will be taken pending further discussions. In particular, 
none of the files compiled during the Administration of 
former President Nixon will be moved from their present 
locations nor \·lill any steps be taken to implement the 
arrangement of September 6, such as by giving either Mr. 
Nixon or Hr. Sampson any "keys" to those files or any other 
access to them. 

I believe it is important to state this agreement in 
the clearest terms possible. On August 14, 1974, I wrote 
to Mr. Buzhardt, then Counsel to the President, that "the 
status quo should be maintained and no ~aterials of any 
type should be relinquished from the custody or control of 
the ~vhite House." (A copy of this letter is attached.) 
On August 15, 1974, members of our Office met with you and 
Mr. Buzhardt to discuss this request and it was agreed at 
that time that none of the files in question would be moved 
pending further discussions. You authorized us to release 
a public statement to that effect and we did so, explaining 
that we were satisfied with that arrangement. 

Nevertheless, the agreement of September 6, 1974, about 
which we were not consulted in any way, purports to recog­
nize that Mr. Nixon was, as of that date, the "custodian" 
of the files "with sole right and power of access thereto." 
Apart from the questions we have raised about the legal 
validity of that agreement, it purports to have transferred 
legal custody of the tapes and documents to Mr. Nixon and, 
if valid, may seriously complicate our ability to obtain 
prompt and effective access to evidence necessary to in­
vestigations under our jurisdiction. 

Thus, until we can pursue the alternatives that were 
discussed at yesterday's meeting for clarifying or altering 
the terms or effect of the September 6 letter agreement, we 
would appreciate it if the physical arrangements existing 
at present not be modified in any way. It is our under­
standing that you have agreed to this request. 

/ 
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Please let me know if the agreement set forth above 
does not coincide with the discussions as you understand 
them. 

Sincerely, 

Phil A. Lacovara 
Counsel to the Special 

Prosecutor 

Enclosure 

cc: Honorable Laurence H. Silberman 
Deputy Attorney General 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. c. 20530 

~ t::: ~ 
l~ :> 
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WAT 1{GA i ESPECIAL i>KOSECUTION FORCE 
li n!t~J Stal.o::s Dep..trt:ncnt of Justice 

1425 :<. Stn::d, N. W. 
Wa:•ilington. D.C. 20('_,.()5 

August 14, 1974 

J.- Fred Buzhardt, Esq. 
Counsel to the President 
'Ihe White House 
Hashington, D. C. 

Dear Mr . Buzhardt: 

l-7hen mer.tbers of our office met with you and lY!r. St. 
Clair yesterday you indicated tha·t the process of tran­
sition bet·ween Administrations would involve a supp:J_e­
mental appropriation and the appointment of a liaison 
official bet~veen the President and government agencies, 
including the tihite House and the Special Prosecutor's 
office . It ~vas our understanding that this process 
·Hould take some time, and that in particular no documents 
o r materials to which the farner President might be 
entitled \-70Uld be or could be removed from the White 
House files until that time. You also then adVised us of 
your judgment that, by custom, materials in the White 
House files become the "private property" of a forEer 
President when he leaves office . 

As you know, materials in the tfui te House files are 
o f extreme importance to a number of investigations within 
the jurisdiction of this office. In fact, at the time of 
President Nixon ' s resignation, there were outstanding a 
considerable number of unresolved requests from us for 
access to specific tapes or documents or to categories of 
tapes and documents. The scope of a former President's 
entitlement to materials that , during his incumbency, 
were official White House files is, in our judgment, not 
free from doubt . Regard~ess of that question, however, 
the government , including the Special Prosecutor ' s of­
fice and the grand jury, certainly has a legitimate 
interest in access to these materials to the extent that 
they relate to continuing business of the government. 
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he therefore request that, until Hhi·te Hm:::.s8 counsel, 
representatives of the former President , anc this office 
can explore and hopefully agree upon procedures for 
assuring access to relevant evidence nmv located in Whi·te 
House files, the status quo should be maintained and no 
naterials of any type should be relinquished from the 
custody or control of the White House. 

~1e understand that, on the basis of your discussion 
\·lith General Haig, he will explore this matter further 
\•7i L'l. the Special Prosecutor and that for the present 
there \vill be no change in the status or location of the 
materials in question. 

Sincerely , 

Philip A. Lacovara 
Counsel to the Special 

Prosecutor 
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THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

September 20, 1974 

Dear Mr. Rhoads : 

Confirming our recent conversation, in which William Casselman also 
participated, I set forth the following points concerning the 
letter agreement between former President Nixon and Administrator 
Arthur F. Sampson of the General Services Administration dated 
September 6, 1974: 

l) A principal reason that I had recommended acceptance of this 
agreement as to disposition of tape recordings which are 
covered by paragraphs 8 and 9 was based upon J1I:f understanding 
of the clandestine nature of their origin. It is J1I:f belief 
that such recordings made of conversations engaged in Q1 
persons of wham one or more were unaware of the recordings 
are so offensive and contrary to their interests in personal 
privacy and in freedom of expression as to justify or even 
require treatment different from that accorded other 
.materials covered by the agreement. The different treat­
ment specified in the agreement, while allowing for Court­
ordered disclosure to appropriate parties over a 5-year 
period, does preclude other access except as conducted or 
directed by the former President in accordance with 
specified safeguards involving the General Services Adminis­
tration and otherwise allows, and ultimately requires, 
destruction of the tapes over a second 5-year period. 

2) You correctly pointed out that this different treatment of 
such tape recordings results in cutting off the possibility 
for historians to learn the conversational contents of the 
tapes at same future time, even so far in the future as to 
make it unlikely any persons involved would then be living. 
You also expressed your opinion that this was a very 
objectionable result from your point of view and from that 
of other archivists and historians. I assured you that you 
were under no obl.igation to refrain from expressi.ng this 
opinion freely so long as·. you hold it, and that I would 
be willi~g to assure anyone to that effect who inquires. 

" ~· i; /( ~-~ Also, you m~ use this letter to overcame any possible v . 

~:. 
<::\. 
,!;;; 
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Honorable James B. Rhoads 
September 20, .J.974 
Page 2 

implication that your undertaking or authorizing steps to 
implement the agreement as written, whether in the initial 
5-year period or afterwards, may constitute a retreat :from 
the opinion you expressed. 

3) I suggested to you that the historical and archival community 
may wish to consider :fully, under appropriate organizational 
auspices, the problems posed by the surreptitious use o:f 
modern reco;rding techniques to make a "record for history" 
of private conversations. The problem occurs when not all 
parties to the conversation have ~een made aware a recording 
is in process and also when none o:f the parties is aware the 
conversation is being recorded. We· discussed generally the 
concerns to be addressed and their relations to problems, 
present and future, going far beyond those caused by only the 
tape recordings covered by the agreement in question. However, 
those are matters which you and others who may want to take 
up the suggestion would independently want to determine. 

Thank you very much for our meeting and for your thoughtful attention 
to the points raised. 

Sincerely yours, 

i:~t:!!:~ 

The Honorable James B. Rhoads 
Archivist of the United States 
General Services Administration 

Counsel to the President 

8th and Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Room lll 
Washington, D. C. 20408 

cc: William Casselman 
Administrator Arthur F. Sampson 



LAW OFFICES 

MILL10t, CASSIDY, LARnOCA & U'WIN 
1:120 19TH STREET. N.W. • SUITC: !500 

WASHINGTON, 0. C. 20036 

AREA CODE 202 

TELEPHONE 293-6400 

ERBERT J. MILL£R, JR. 

)Hl\1 JOSEPH CASSIDY 

~Yioi·OND G. L.ARROCA 

JOSEPH s·. MCCARTHY 

COURTNEY A. EvANS 

OF COUNSEL 

ATHAN LEWIN 

ARTIN 0. MINSK'!:R 

'ILUAM H. JEFFRESS. Jlt. 
iOMA& 0. ROWE. Jlt. 
, RAYMOND RANDOLPH. JR. 

, STAN MORTEN50N 

September 20, 1974 

Philip w. Buchen·. Etlquire 
Counsel to the~President 
The White House 
Washington, D. c. 20500 

Dear Mr. Buchen: 

This letter is in reference to a letter dated Septem­
ber 18, 1974, to J. Fred Buzhardt, Jr., Esquire, from Richard 
Ben-Veniste~ Assistant Special Prosecutor, and a letter dated 
September 13, 1974, to yourself from Mr. Richard Ben-Veniste. 

With reference to the letter of September 18, as the 
attorney for former President· Richard Nixon I have no objection 
to your making available to Mr. Ben-Veniste the five dates 
specified from President Nixon's daily diary. I would object 
to an informal turning over of the tape recording of the conver­
sation between President Nixon and John W. Dean, February 28, 
1973. Since a copy Of that tape has already been furnished to 
the Specia~ Prose~utor it would seem that the proper way to pro-

·ceed would be for a subpoena to be served on President Nixon to 
produce that tape at which time it could be produced pursuant to 
the procedures ~hich have aiready been established pursuant to a 
prior sUbpoena 1SSUed by the Special Prosecutor. 

With respect to the items requested in the September 13, 
1974, letter, I have no objection· to turning over and hereby 
designate Mr. Jerry Jones, Staff Secretary, White House, to ob­
tain the documents in Item Nos. 1, 2, 3 if available, 5 and 6. 
Once they have been located and after I have examined th~I] 
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Philip W. Buchen, Esquire 
September 20, 1974 
Page Two 

I believe I will have no objection to their being turned over. 

With respect to Item No. 4, reflecting the manifest 
of Air Force One, if there are security problems involved in 
making such information available then I would, of course, ob­
ject to turning over that inform.ation. 

With respect to Item No. 7 which will require a sUb­
stantial amount of work, I designate Mrs. Gertrude T. Fry, 
Librarian, White House, to examine the documents and obtain 
the information there requested. Again upon my examination it 
is believed that there will be no objection to it being turned 
over. 

With respect to Item No. 8 which is the blanket request 
for the President's daily diary from June 17, 1972 through 
December 31, 1973, I would, of course, object to such a blanket 
request but would be available to discuss any specific requests 
for diaries as to specific meetings or dates. 

If you have any questions concerning the above, please 
do not hesitate to contact the undersigned. 

HJM/psb 
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WASHINGTON, D.C.. ZC3-\3 

B-149372 Septem~er 20, 1974 

. 
The Honorable Joseph H .. Montoya, Chairman 
Subcotili!littee on Treasury, Postal. Service 

and General Government 

·~ l,o'J-1.,.' 'I' J 
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Co~ttee on Appropriations 
Unit ed States Senate 

-r U- Chai • Dear ~. rman. 

This refers to your letter of September 12, 1974, 'Wherein you 
request our views on certain questions arising in connection with 
the Subcommittee's consideration of rwo proposed appropriations to 
·the General Services Adrninjstratiori (GSA) which would provide 
services, fac:Uities, and benefits· for former President Richard M. 
Nixon. 

Our opini.on is requested conceming the eligibility of former 
President Nixon for services and facilities under the ?residential 
Transition Act of 1963; limitations upon nonreimbursabl~ details 
provid~d t_g ___ him under the Presidential Transition Act; and the 
validity of an agr~ement between the GSA Administrator and former ~ 
President Nixon regarding the preservation of the latter's Presi-

- dential historical materials.. Each of these questions in the order 
here presented is treated separately below. 

'Eligibility of former President Nixon urider 
the Presidential Transition Act 

... 

We hava reviewed the correspondence between GSA 2nd the Depart­
Iilent of Justice which was enclosed with your letter to us. In a 
letter to the Attorney Gene_ra;t dated August 12, 1974, the GSA Adminis­
trator expressed the view that the Presidential Transition Act does 
apply in former President Nixon's situation, and requeste d the 
Attorney General's opinion on this point. In a letter to the Adminis-
trator dated August 15, 1974, the Acting Assistant Attorney General, _ 
Office of Legal Counsel, held that the Transition Act is applicabl e · "-• FOfiJ 
to former President Nixon. While this l!latter is by no means clear, ~ C:. 
we agree, for the reasons stated here inafter, with the conclusion : · E 
expressed by GSA and the Department of Justice. ~ '\-.,. 
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The purpose of the Presidential Transition Act of 1963, approved 
March 7, 1964, Pub. L. 88-277, 78 Stat. 153, 3 U.S.C. 102 note, as 
stated in section 2 thereof~ is "to promote the orderly transfer of ... 
the executive power in connection with the expiration of the tera of 
office of a President and the inauguration of a new President." To 
this end, section 3(a) authorizes the Administrator of General 
Services to provide, upon request, to each President-elect and each 
Vice-President-elect, for use in connection tvith his preparations 
for the assumption of official duties, necessary services and facili­
ties including (1) suitable office space appropriately equipped and 
furnished; -(2) compensation for office staffs, including the detail 
of Federal employees; (3) payment of experts or consultants or organi.­
iaticns thereof; (4) travel and subsistence allowances, including 
rental. of Government or hired motor vehicles; (5) coiD.I:lunications 
services; (6) printing and binding expenses; and (7) reimbursement to 
the postal revenues for the value of mailing privileges authorized 
lmder subsection 3(d). Section 4 of the Act provides in part: 

"The Administrator is authorized to provide, upon 
request , to each former President and each former Vice 
President, for a period not to exceed six months from 
the date of the expiration of his term of office as 
President or Vi:ce President, for use in connection with 
winding up the affairs of his office, necessary services 
and facilities of the same general character as author­
ized by this Act to be provided to Presidents-elect and 
Vice-Presidet;tts-elect. * *' *11 

Section 5 authorizes the appropriation of such sums as may be necessary 
for carrying out the purposes of the Act but not to exceed $900~000 
lrfor any one Presidential transition* * *. 11 

There are certain fairl~ specific limitations upon the applica­
bility of the Presidential Transition Act . For ·~~ample~ under the 
definitions of ''President-elect" and "Vice-President-elect" contained 
in subsection 3(c), . services and facilities are available only to 
persons to accede to s~h offices as successful candidates in a 
general Presidential election. Also, incumbent Presidents and Vice 
Presidents who are reelected are not eligible for transition services 
and facilities; nor would a new Vice-?resident-elect who is the running 
mate of a reelected incumbent President . Cf., H. Rept. No. 301, 
88th Cong., 1st sess., 5; S. Rept. No. 448 ~ 88th Cong. , 1st sess . , 3. 

In general terms~ and even beyond that portion of the stated 
purpose in section 2, quoted previously, it is obvious from the basic 
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statu~ory sche~e and legislative history that the Transition Act was 
enacted only in consideration of a transit ion occurring through the 
normal electoral pr ocesses. Clearly , no thought was given to the 
possibil~ty of a Presidential resignation , and, accordingly , i t may 
fairly be said that Congress never specifical ly i ntended t o make 
transi tion services and f acilities availabl e to a former President 
~~o had resigned. This obs ervation might reasonably be consi dered 
sufficient to justify the conclusi on that fo rmer President Nixon i s 
not eligible for such s ervices and facilities. However~ we believe 
that the absence of a specific affirmative legislative intent in this 
regard need not be considered dispositive provided that the f urnishing 
o£ transition services and facilities to a former President by resigna­
tion~ albeit not foreseen as a possibility, may nonetheless be con­
sidered consistent with the express t~rms of the Transition Act and 
its general. purposes. We further believe that both of these conditions 
are satisfied. 

As noted previously, section 4 of the Transition Act authorizes 
the provision "to each former President" of services and facilities 
of the same general character as those authorized for Pres.idents-elect 
and Vice-Presidents-elect for a period not to exceed six months "from 
the date of the expiration of his term of office * * *· 11 Wni1e the 
Transition Act itself does not elaborate upon the quoted language, 
consideration must be given in this regard to the so-called "Former 
Presidents--Act," approved August 25, 1958, Pub. L. 85-745, 72 Stat._ 
838~ as amended, 3 U.S.C. 102 note. This statute authorizes the -
provision to each former President of a pension, office space, and 
staff allowanc~for the remainder of his life. A pens~on is also 
provided for the widow of a former President. 

The relationship between the Transition Act and the Former Presi­
dents Act appears significant in several respect.s. First, subsection (f) 
of the Former Presidents Act defines a "fanner President" as an indi­
vidual who has held the office of President and whose service in that 
office terminated other than by removal through impeachment and con­
viction. Secondly, section ~of the Transition Act expressly provides 
that the Former Presidents Act, except for the pension provisions, 
shall not become effective with respect to a former President until 
six months after the expiration of his term of office as President. 
This six-month delay in the operation of the Former Presidents Act was 
included on the assumption that a former President would, for the first 
six months after he leaves office, receive services and facilities 
under the Transition Actt. and, therefore, was designed to avoid duplica­
tion and confusion resulting from the simultaneous operation of both 
acts during the six-month period. See H. Rept. No. 301, supra, 2-3; 
S. Rept. t~o. 448, supra, 4. 
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In view of the integral relationship bea.,een t he tT.-lo s tatutes, 
10e belie.va it is reasonable that the definition of "farner President" ... 
contained in the Former Presidents Act should be co~sidered applicable 
as well under section 4 of the Transition Act . Former President Nixon 
would. of course , fall within this definition since he was not actually 
removed from office by i~eachment and conviction. 

A related matter is whether former President Nixon's " t erm of 
ot"fice" has expi red for purpos es of the Transition Act. The concept 
of "term of office" has different meanings in different contexts. 
See generally 67 C.J.S., Of f i cer s, §42, p. 196; 41 Words and Phrases , 
".Tel:Dl of Office," pp. 621-628. While none of the contexts presented 
in ~he cited references are particularly analogous to the present 
consideration, there is some authority to the effect t hat a fixed te~ 
of office expires when the occupant leaves that office. See, for 
example, the following passage from the opinion of the New Jersey 
Supreme Court in Board of Chosen Freeholders v. Lee, 76 N.J.L. 327, 
70 A. 925, 926 (1908): ----

"The words 'tei:m of office' may in a sense be used 
t o indicate the statutory period for which an officer is 
elected. We speak of the term of office of the President 
of the United States and the term of office of the Gover­
nor of the state , meaning that the first was four years 
and the latter three years; but the words 'term of office' 
may also mean a period much shorter than that for w i c.h. 
the particular officer was elected. His tel:tl of office 
may be terminated before the expiration of the statutory 
period for which he was elected by impeachment, or resigna­
tion, or death of the particular officer. The happening 
of these contingencies is an implied limitation upon the 
right of the elected officer to continue in office for 
the period for which he would otherwise be entitled to 
hold. When such a contingency occurs, the officer's 
ter.m expires, there is a vacancy, and upon the appoint­
ment or election to fill the vacant office the term of 
another officer begins. ~To assert that a term of office 
o f an impeached or deceased officer continues is to 
assert that there may be tto1o terms of office running 
together, although the office can be filled but by a 
single person. * * *" 
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It se~ to us that the relationship between the Forner Presidents 
Act and the Transition Act sheds further light upon this matter. 
Former President N~on's term of office either expired on the date 
of his resignation or it must, in effect, be viewed as continuing 
until Jc:;nuary 20 » 1977. The latter approach -would produce th~ in­
congruous result, by literal application of section 4 of the 
Transiti~n Act, that he would not qualify for application of the 
.Former Presidents Act, other than the pension provision, until six 
months after January 20, 1977. Even if former President Ni...xon's 
term of office is considered to have expired on the date of his 
~esignation, section 4 of the Transition Act would by its terms 
still delay operation of the Former Presidents Act in his case» 
other than the pensio!:, for six months. This result, coupled with 
a hold~ng that the substantive provisions of the Transition Act do 
not apply, would also be incongruous since, as noted previously, 
the only basis for the six--mOnth delay is the assumption that a 
former President is receiving services"and facilities under the 
Transition Act during this period • 

. . 

. For the foregoing reasons, we believe that former President Nixon 
may be considered eligible for services and facilities consistent with 
the express terms of the Transition Act; and, as indicated above, the 
opposite conclusion would seem to produce results which appear clearly 
at odds wi-th a reasonable construction of the two statutes taken ~ 

together. It is also our view that provision of transition services 
and facilities to a President who has resigned would be consistent 
with the ·general objectives of the Transition Act. As noted pre­
viously,· section 2 of the Act states its purpose to be to promote 
the orderly transfer of executive power "in connection with the expi­
ration of the term of office of a President and the inaugUration of 
a-new President." Section 2 goes on to state, in part: 

:"* * .* The national interest requires tl}at such 
transitions in the office of President be accomplished 
so as to assure continu~y in the faithful execution 
of the laws and in the conduct o:f the affairs of the 
Federal Government, both domestic and foreign. Any · 
disruption occasioned by the transfer of the executive 
power could produce results det·rimental to the safety 
and well-being of the United States and its people. 
ACcordingly, it is the intent of ~he Congress that 
appropriate actions be authorized and taken to avoid 
or minimize. any disruption. * * *" 
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Si~ply stated> we c~~ perceive of no reason why a transition resul ting 
froi:!. the resignation of a President would be any less significant in .. 
te~s of the fo~egoi~g considerations as stated in section 2 than a 
transition following a general election; nor does it appear that the 
needs of a former President for services and facilities in connection 
with winding up his official affairs would be any less severe merely 
because he had resign.ad. On the contrary, such considerations and 
needs might even be considered more compelling following a Presiden­
tial resignation. 

In sum~ While former President Nixon's resignation gives rise 
to a unique situation in consideration of the Presidential Transition 
Act~ it is our view that~ on balance, a holding that he is eligible 
for transition services and facilities is less troublesome in terms 
of the design, operation~ and general objectives of the .Act than 
would be the contrary conclusion. 

Tne analysis and conclusions expressed above do not take into 
account the particula~ circumstances leading to former President Nixon's 
~esignation since such circumstances are, in our view, irrelevant to 

·the legal. issues presented. Thus the legal issues would necessarily 
be the same regardless of the reasons for a President's resignation. 
Finally~ it is noted that the Presidential Transition Act is essen­
tially operative on the basis of appropriations made pursuant to 

.· 

the authorization of section 5. ~nether or to what extent appro- ~ 

priations· are act.ually justified in the case of former President Nixon 
is a separate matter which must, of course, be determined by the 
Congress • . 

·. .• 

· . . •· 
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Nonreimbursable· details provided to forwer 
Prasident Nixon pursuant to t he Presidential 
Transition Act 

You also request our comments concerning the amount of nonreim­
bursable details under t hat portion of paragraph 3(a)(2) of the 
Presidential Transition Act which states, l~th reference to staffing 
for Presidents-elect and Vice-Presidents-elect; 

"* * * Provided, 'Plat any employee of any agency of any 
., branch of the Government may be detailed to such staffs 

on a reimbursable or nonreimbursable basis with the con­
sent. of the head of th~ agency; and while so detailed 
such employee shall be responsible only to the President­
elect or Vice-President-elect for the performance of his 
duties: ·provided further, That any em.Ployee so detailed 
shall continue to receive the compensation provided 
pursuant to law for his regular employment, and shall 
retain the rights and privileges of suCh employment 

. · without intep:uption. * * *" {Emphasis added.) 

The same authority to datail Federal employees clearly applies to a 
former President or Vice President under section 4 of the Act since 
it is a service "of the same general character as authorized" for -the incoming officials; and, in fact, section 4 expressly provides·: . 

''* *. 1t Any ·person appointed or detailed to serve a forme~ 
President or former Vice President under authority of 
this section shall be ·appointed or detailed in accordance 
wit~, and shall be s':lbject to_, all of the provisions of 
section 3 of this Act applicable to persons appointed or 
detailed under authority of that section. * * *u 

• 

The basic issue which arises in this regard concerns the relationship 
between the provision for nonreimbursable details and the overall 
$900,000 limitation u~on appropriations authorized by section 5 of 
the Act, which provides! 

.''There are hereby authorized to be appropriated 
t~ the Adcinistrator such funds as may be necessary for 
carrying out the purposes of this Act but not to exceed 
$900,000 for any one Presidential transition~ to re~in 
available during the fiscal year in which the transition 
occurs and the next succeeding fiscal year. The President 
shall include in the budget transmitted to the Congress» · 
for each fiscal year in which his regular term of office 
will expire, a proposed appropriation for carrying out 
the purposes of this Act." 

" 
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Thus the question is whzther the cost or value of nonreimbursable 
details~ in terms of the salaries represented, is subject to the 
$900,000 appropriation authorization limitation under section 5 or, 
more specifically, any amount which is actually appropriated under 
section 5. 

Absent an overall monetary limitation upon appropriations under 
the Trans~tion Act, the express authority to detail employees on a 

. nonreimbursable basis would clearly operate without restriction in 
terms of cost or value. In elusion of the appropriation authorization 
l:lmitation and the legislative history of the Act in this regard 
are· som.ewhat perplexing in this respect. The original version of 
the Transition Act legislation included the authority to detail on 
a rei.I!lbursable or nonreimbursable basis.. On the other hand~ the 
or~ginal bill did not impose a limitation upon appropriations, 

·· . authorizing instead appropriation of "such funds as may be necessary 
for carrying out the purposes of this Act." See H.R. 4638~ 88th 
Cong., 1st sess., as introduced on March 7, 1963. The House Com­
mittee on Government Operations added a $1.3 million appropriation 

. ·. 
authorization limitation in the version of the bill which it re­
ported; and some monetary limitation remained in the legislation 
thereafter. See H.R. 4638 as reported Hay 15, 1963. However, we 
find no indication that the Congress ever considered the effect of 
a monetary limitation upon the provision expressly permitting non­
reimbursable details. 

At the same time, the legislative history clearly demonstrates 
that throughout consideration of this legislation the appropriation 
authorization limitation was viewed as representing the full scope 
and value of s·ervices and facilities under the Act.. Thus the House 
Committee on Government Operations, in adopting a $1. 3 million 
limitation, observed, H. Rept. No. 301~ 88th Cong., 1st sess., 4: 

"The limitation of $1,300,000 for expenditures 
in any one fiscal year ~eems reasonable in view of 
the estimates presented. This can be changed by 
future legislation if experience so dictates. Any 
request for funds must, of cours.e, be strictly 
justified before the appropriation is made by 
C.ongress." 

During floor consideration, Congressman Fascell, the sponsor of the 
bill, stated, 109 Cong. Rec. 13350 (July 25, 1963): 

''The comm.ittee added to the bill a limitation on 
expenditures of $1,300,000 for all of the purposes of 
tpe bill in any one fiscal year. This seems a reasonable 
figure considering both incoming and outgoing Presidents 
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and Vice Presidents and was based en the best estimates 
available to us. Of course~ the specific figure to be 
appropriated in any year must be fully justified before 
the Appropriations Committee." 

Thereafter the following colloquy occurred~ id. at 13351: 

• 

·~. GROSS. * * * Can the gentlemen from Florida 
tell me, if he will~ please, how many $100-a-day 
consultants it is expected will be employed to take 
care of the incoming President and Vice President. in 
1964? 

.. 

..... ~-

- . 
''Mr. FASCELL. I may say to the gentleman from 

I6wa'whatever the Pre9ident can substantiate in his 
budget request and whatever he can get out of the 
Committee on Appropriations and whatever may be 
necessary or required with:i.Ii the limitation of the 
authorization under this act.,· 

- -- - -· ·-

"Mr. GROSS. It is wide open insofar as this bill 
is concerned~ and insofar as the committee is concerned, 
that -is, the Committee on Government Operations'? 

"Mr .. FASCELL.. No, I -would not say it is wide open 
at a-ll. We do have a limit on the authorization and we 
do follow the normal appropriation procedure." 

The Senate Committee on Government Operations retained the House­
passed $1.3 million limitation in the version of the bill which it 
reported. The Senate Committee incorporated the explanation of the 
House report in this regard. SeeS. Rept. No. 448, 88th Cong., 1st 
sess., 3. The Senate report also set forth, as had the House report, 
recomaendation No. 8 of the P,;esident's Commission on Campaign Costs, 
which read in part: ·. 

'~e endorse proposals to 'institutionalize' the 
transition from one administration to another when the 
party in power changes. Important reesons for doing 
so exist wholly aside from the costs to the parties. 
The new President must select and assemble the staff 
to man his administration, and they in return must 
prepare themselves for their new responsibilities. 

"We recommend that the outgoing President be autho­
rized to extend needed facilities and services of the 
Government to the President-elect and his associates. 
We also recommen~ that funds be appropriated, to be spent ., 
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through normal gove~mental channels~ for that purpose ." 
Id. at 2. · {Gnderscoring supplied.) - . 

During floor consideration in the Senate, an amendment was adopted 
which reduced the app~apriation authorization limitation to $500,000» 
109 Cong. Rec. 19737 (October 17, 1963); and the conferees agreed 
upon a compromise figure of $900»000. H. Rept. No .• 1148, 88th Co_ng., 
2d sess., 2. 

Remarks during consideration of the conference report in each 
House again reflect the understanding that the limitation was compre­
hensive. In the Senate, Senator 1-ti.ller observed with reference to th.e 
l~tation, 110 Co_ng. Rec. 3397 (February 24, 1964): 

:
11* * * the Senator from Washington pointed out, in 

the conference. that this amount is a ceiling; it is not ~ 
necessarily the ~unt of money that will be appropriated. 
This is an authorization bill; and the Appropriation Com­
mittees may not approve amounts up to the ceiling thus 
set. · The expenditures may not come anywhere near that 
amount. So perhaps the Senator from Georgia and I will, 
later. have an opportunity together to do something abou~ 
getting this amount back to the amount which we think it 
real1y should be." 

Senator Jackson added: 

"I desire to point out that we feel that this is 
defhltely a ceiling; and in rrr:1 judgment-speaking only 
for myself, although I am sure I also speak for the Senator 
from Iowa [t-.lr. Hil1er]-they can get along with well under 
the $900,000 ~igure." Id. -. 

On the House side, Congressman Fascell stated, 110 Cong. Rec. 3539 
(February 25, 19~4): 

. ·"* * * In the confEh:ence we agreed on $900,000 as 
a reasonable amount, with the expectation that if expendi­
tures went higher than that amount, as we had anticipated 
in the authorization of the Hous·e bill, we could by way 
of supplemental request take care of the needed additional 
appropriation." 

Again, a colloquy occurred between Congressman Gross and Congress­
man Fascell, id. at 3540: 
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·~. CROSS. Is the $900,000 to cover both the 
President-elect and Vice-President-elect? 

"Mr. FASCET...L. Yes. 

"Mr. GROSS. Would this cover the cost of jet 
planes and the Cadillacs to be assigned to the~ 
during the interim period? 

"Mr. FASCELL. If such were assigned to them, I 
would assume they would be covered in the budget request . 

"Mr. GROSS. This will not be in addition thereto'? 

"Mr. FASCELL. Whatever the services are, itemized 
in the bill, are authorized and which would be covered 
by the appropriation. Since the authorization fixes 
those services;, one could not go beyond that." 

'As indicated previously, the legislative history leaves no doubt 
that the appropriation authorization limitation was enacted Yith the 
intent that it would cover all services and facilities provided under 
the Transition Act. This intent is further reflected in the second 

_sentence of section 5, relating to budget submissions. We believe~ 
that this manifestation of congressional intent is sufficient to over­
come any implicit authority under the provisions of the Act to furnish 
services or facilities other than the detail of Federal employees on 
a nonreimbursable basis. Nevertheless, we must conclude that this 
legisl.ative history is simply inconsistent with the Act's express 
grant of authority for nonreimbursable details. Accordingly, it is 
our opinion that nonreimbursable details under the ~ransition Act 
are not subject to monetary limitations under section 5 or any amount 
appropriated pursuant to section 5. Since, for the reasons stated 
above, it appears that this result may not have been intended, the 
Congress might wish to consider amending paragraph 3(a)(2) of the 
Transition Act t:o delete the reference to details on a nonreimbursable 
basis. 

In this regard, it is our unders"tanding that nonreimbursable 
services and facilities in addition to the detail of employees--such 
as use of existing Federal office space, equipment, and communications 
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facilities--have in the past been provided ~~der the Trfulsition Act. 
While our decision at 48 Camp. Gen. 786, 789 (1969), referred to in 
the text hereinafter, might be considered as implicitly approving 
such additional nonreimbursable services and facilities, this was not 
intended and that decision should not be so viewed. 

Nottdthstanding the absence, in our view, of a monetary limita­
tion, details of Federal employees are clearly subject to certain 
other conditions and restrictions under the Transition Act. First, 
as stated in the first proviso of paragraph. 3(a)(2), such details may 
be made only with the consent of the head of the employing agency; 
although we know of no particular formalities which would apply in 
this regard. 

... 

Second, definite time limitations apply. By virtue of section 3 (b) , 
a Federal employee could be detailed to the staff of a President-elect 
or Vice-President-elect only for a period commencing on the day after 

· a general Presidential election and ending not later than the date of 
inauguration. In the case of a former President or Vice President, 
the detail would be limited by section 4 to a period not to exceed 
six months following the date of expiration of the term. of office, or, 
in former :President Nixon's case, the date of his resignation. These 
time limitations would apply even if appropriations under the Act were 

I· · made available for a longer period. See 48 Camp . Gen. 786, 789, (1969) 
( copy enclosed): 

Finally, such .details would be subject to the general limitations 
upon the purposes for which any services or facilities are provided 
pursuant to the Transition Act. In the case of a President-elect or 
Vice-President-elect, section 3(a) authorizes necessary services and 
facilities "for use in connection with his preparation for the assumption 
of official duties as President or Vice President * * *. 11 Section 4 
limits provisio; of services and facilities to a former President or 
Vice President to those necessary "for. use in connection w:i.th winding 
~p the affairs of his office."'k * *·" See 48 Camp. Gen. 786, 789, supra; 
end our letter of September 11, 1974, to Congressman Joseph P. Addabbo, 
B-149372 ~ page 2 (copy enclosed). In this regard, we feel constrained 
to suggest that the Subcommittee ca~efully review the list of Federal 
employees presently detailed to former President Nixon and the functions 
which .they are to perform. For example, GSA's list of employees now 
detailed to former President Nixon (Revised Justification, dated Septem­
ber 10, 1974) includes a "butler" and a "maid" who are on the payroll 
of the Park Service, as well as three "military drivers." It is not 
apparent to us how such employees would be used by a former President 
in connection with winding up the affairs of his office. 
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Validity of an agreement between the GSA 
Administrator and former President Nixon 
regarding the preservation of the latter's 
Presidential historical materials 

,. 

Tne Septecber 6 agreement between former President Nixon and the Admin­
istrator of GSA provides in some detail for the disposition of }rr. Nixon's 
Presidential historical materials . The term "historical materials" in 
the agreement is assigned the meaning given it by 44 U.S.C. 2101~ as 
.including-

i ·~~oks, correspondence, documents, papers, pamphlets , 
· works of art, models, pictures, photographs, plats, maps , 

films, motion pictures, sound recordings, and other objects 
or materials having historical or commen:nnorative value.'' 

The stated purpose of the agreement is to preserve the materials until 
such time as Mr. Nixon's intention to donate a "substantial portion" 
thereof to the United States is consummated. His desire, in making the 
donation, is said to be that the materials be available, with appropriate 
res.trictions, for research and study. 

In 1950~ legislation was first enacted authorizing the .Administrator 
.og General Services to accept for deposit--

"the' personal papers and other personal historical 
documentary materials of the present President of the 
United States, his successor, heads of ~~ecutive depart­
ments and such other officials of the Government as the 
President may designate * * *," 

$Ubject to restrictions specified by the depositors. Section 507(e) 
of the act of September 5) 1950, chapter 849, 64 Stat. 578, 588. The 
intent o.f this provision was to make it possible for the documents in 
question to be preserved by the Government with related official 
records and to be available for scholarly research. H. Rept. No. 2747, 
8lst Cong., 2d Sess., 15 {1950). Such materials had in the past often 
been dispersed and, sometimes, lost. · 

As enacted. the 1950 law did not provide for the Adoinistrator 
to accept for deposit the papers of a former President, nor was 
there any provision for the establishment of depository libraries 
for Presidential papers apart from the National Archives. In 1955, 
legislation was enacted to achieve both these purposes. Act of 
August 12, 1955, ch. 859, 69 Stat. 695. Section 1 of the act of 
August 12, 1955, as amended, 44 u.s.c. 2107, authorizes the Admin­
istrator to accept for deposit--
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"the papers and other historical materials of any 
President or formar President of the United States * * * 
subject to restrictions agreeable to the Adminj s trator 
as to their use ** *·" 

The act also provides that : 

. 
·" 

"The Administrator:~~ in negotiating for the deposit 
of Presidential historical materials, shall t ake s teps 
to secure to the Government, as far ·as possibl e, the 
right to have continuous and permanent possession of 
the materials * * *·'' 44 U.S.C. 2108(c). 

" 

.. 

The House Govenun.ent OperatiollS Committee report ou H. J. Res. 330, 
84th Congre~s, the derivative source of the act of August 12, 1955:~~ 
·states that: 

''The enactment of the resolution into law would 
end the lack of a systematic arrangement for the pre­
servation and use of Presidential papers that has re­
sulted in irreparable loss or dispersion of important 
bodies of Presidential documents during the 166 years 
of our Nation's existence. It would enable our 
Presidents and former Presidents to plan _for the pre­
servation of their papers at the place of their choice 
with the knowledge that the Gove:rni!l~nt has made pro­
vision to receive them in the archives of the Nation 
with adequate provisions for their preservation, with 
proper safeguards for their adwinistration, and with 
restrictions on their use that recognize and protect 
the President's rights." H. Rept. No. 998, 84th Cong.:~~ 1st. sess. 2 · 

(1955)- -

The act reflects the recognitio~ that papers and other materials 
generated and collected by a ~esident in the course of his official 
duties may become his personal property. We note that the Attorney 
General has opined:~~ in a letter to the President dated September 6, 1974:~~ 
that it has apparently been "the almost unvaried understanding of all 
three branches of Government since the beginning of the Republic:" as 
reflected in nthe practices of our Presidents since the earliest times" 
that the papers and other materials of a former President are his 
personal property~ subject only to certain limitations directly re­
lated to the character of the documents as records of Government 
activity such as, for example, security classification • 

.. 
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Under the.Septe~ber 6 agreement,}~. Nixon retains legal and 
equitable title to the naterials and sole control of access to and 
use of then for the present. He ~kes a gift to the Nation of the 
Vnite House recordings effective September 1, 1979, although they 

... 

are all to be destroyed September 1, 1984, or at his death, whichever 
first occurs, and he can order any of them destroyed after September 1, . 
1979. He expresses ris intention to donate a portion of the other 

.~terials to the Nation, after he has reviewed them. 

.The various restrictions on the use o~ and access to the materials 
deposited with the Administrator are very broad. However, in nego­
-tiating such agreements the Administrator, it seems clear, is to be 
guided by the legislative goal, lvhich is to secure to the Nation to 
the extent poss.ible the use of Presidential historical material~, and 
to prevent their dispersion into private hands, or their loss. 

In vi.ew of this responsibility of the Administrator, and of the 
broad discretion given him by 44 U.S.C. 2107 and 2108(c) we cannot 
say that the September 6 agreement is not valid. We have no basis 
to assume that the Administrator did not diligently seek to achieve 
the statutory objectives, or that it would have been possible to 
negotiate an agreement more favorable to .the United States, particularly 
since the alternative may have been that Nr. Nixon would make no deposit 
of the materials but rather would assert his recognized right of owner­
ship of them to the exclusion of any right of .access by the United_ 
States . Accordingly, we consider the September 6 agreement to be a . 
valid ex~rcise of the Administrator•s authority. 

We trust that the foregoing is of assistance to the Subcommittee 
in its consideration of the pendin~g appro:~;:::~que~ 

. · .... ~..L-t ( J. . 
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Comptroller General 
of the United States 
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WHITE HOUSE STAGING AREAS 

CENTRAL FILES HATERIAL 
4052 Cubic Feet on 168 shipping pallets 
OEOH Rooms 430, 431, 432, 433, 435, 437, 439 
Key Lock; GSA Area Manager Dan Spaulding has the only key 

CENTRAL FILES MATERIAL & WHITE HOUSE STAFF OFFICE FILES 
l6l14 Cubic Feet on 69 shipping pallets 
OEOB Rooms 423, 425, 427, 428 
Key Lock; GSA Area Manager Dan Spaulding has the only key 

HUITE HOUSE STAFF OFFICE FILES 
1580 Cubic Feet on 74 shipping pallets 
OEOB Rooms 417, 419, 421, 428 
Key Lock; GSA Area Manager Dan Spaul'ding has the only key 

HrliTE HOUSE STAFF OFFICE FILES 
312 Cubic Feet on 13 pallets 
OEOB Room 438 
Key Lock; Access Restricted to Office of Presidential Papers Personnel 

CENTRAL FILES "CONFIDENTIAL FILE'' (Under Alarm Sys tern) 
llOl1 Cubic Feet on 46 pallets 
OEOB Rooms 434-436, lf43-445 
Key Lock; Access Restricted to Office of Persidential Papers Personnel 

WHITE HOUSE STAFF OFFICE "SENSITIVE" FILES (Under Alarm System) 
424 Cubic Feet unpalletized 
OEOB Room 405 
Key Lock; Access Restricted to Office of Presidential Papers Personnel 

September 20, 1974 
Offi~p of Presidential Paners 

.., 



.i 
I 

WHITE HOUSE VAULT AREAS 

SPECIAL FILES 
1053 cubic feet 
OEOB Rooms 84-84 & 522 
Gertrude Brown Fry is custodian 

STAFF PERSONNEL FILES 
105 cubic feet 
OEOB Rooms 41-43 
Jane Danncnhauer is custodian 

NSC NIXON PRESIDENTIAL FILE 
·450 cubic feet (estimate) 
OEOB 205 
Ed Roberts is custodian 

\ 

.., 

·. 



NATIONAL ARCHIVES BUILDING 
· (AlJ. material in vaulted stack areas 1H2 & 2H2 unless otherwise noted) 

\{]UTE HOUSE CENTRAL FILES AND l'lniTE HOUSE STAFF OFFICE FILES 
5224 cubic feet (3392 cubic feet of total now on 141 pallets in "Trevor Alley" 

and basement storage area) 

PRE-PRESIDENTIAL PAPERS OF RICHARD NIXON 
1675 cubic feet 

DONATED PERSONAL PAPERS AND DONATED AUDIOVISUAL MATERIAL 
357 cubic feet 

REPUBLICAN NATIONAL COHMITTEE NIXON HATERIALS 
377.5 cubic feet (329 cubic feet on 14 pallets in "Trevor Alley" and basement storage area) 

CO:.INITTEE TO RE-ELECT THE PRESIDENT 
1466 cubic feet 

STAFF, COMHISSION, COMHITTEE, ETC. FILES (NON-WHITE HOUSE) 
132 cubic fe.ct 

h'1HTE HOUSE CONNUNICATIONS AGENCY NIXON 11ATERIALS 
1273 cubic feet 

NAVAL PHOTO CENTER AUDIOVISUAL NIXON :MATERIALS 
104 cubic feet 

BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS, AND AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS PURCHASED/O~lliED BY U.S. GOVERNHENT 
63 7 cubic feet (586 cubic feet on 25 pallets. in ''Trevor Alley'' and basement storage area) 

HHITE HOUSE PHOTO OFFICE NIXON MATERIAL 
168 cubic feet on 8 pallets in 2W2 

September 20 ~ 197lf 
Office of Presidential Pnpers 

··--···· .... -- ..... ·---:----, -~---···--·-··. -· --. ..• . ---__.~ 

CombinnLJ.on accct'.o. to stnck nrt>ns H12 & 2h2 · ~\ F.i6 , 
Rir.har.d A. Jarobs, Deputy lind ntnnt archivi~;t for Prcr.:Idc·nti.nl/~h .~l1:i i.J'\ 
Adrienne Thomas, M:sistant t:l~ ncputy Archivir.1t ; ;;;: ~ \ 
'l'c1:ry \~. Good, OHi ce of l'rcsJdent:j n.l. L'lbrad ""' ':; ~ j 
Jo Ann Hilli.1:nuon, Office of l'n•:>iclcntial. T • .thradcB ~ .f::J 
Rich<Jrd 1·:. NcNciJ.l, Off:f.cC'. of l'rcsid!!nt:l:'ll U.lll:nriet~ ,:"·" 
J:nacs B. l~ycrs, Office of Pro~;ldc>ltial Llbl:11r1c:; 
Howord HcNC'ill, O.Efl.c~ of l'rosiclclltial J.ibrm:J l!G 

Acceflo to "Trevor' r. Alley". and rccniv:l.ng area: Ni\HS scJ:v:!.c.: JH~nH•11111!l ciurhl!: 

daytime ]Jours, areas srcurcd after hourr.. 



NATIONAl, ARCHIVES BUilDING 
(All material in vaulted stack areas 1W2, 2H2, and 19E3) 

GIFTS 
6,000 cubic feet (estimated) 

Combination access to stack areas 1\-12, 2W2, and 19E3: 

Richard A. Jacobs, Deputy Assistant Archivist for Presidential 
Adrienne Thomas, Assistant to Deputy Archivist 
Terry W. Good, Office of Presidential Libraries 
Jo Ann H'illiamson, Offic-e of Presidential Libraries 
Richard E. McNeill, Office of Presidential Libraries 
James B. Byers, Office of Presidential Libraries 
Howard NcNeill, Office of Presidential Libraries 

A 
September 20, 1974 
Office of Presidential Papers ! 



GOVERNHENT PUBLICATIONS 
1406 cubic feet 

HHITE HOUSE SUPPLY 

SUITLAND STAGING AREAS 

2009 cubic feet (includes 432 cubic feet in transit from EOB) 

STATE DEPARTHENT BULK MAIL 
619 cubic feet 

September 20, 1974 
Office of Presidential Papers 

., 



•. 

-----~-_,_ .. _. ··=--=--;;.;_·· _:_· ~--------------------- -------------- ······- __ :._;·--·:.·::..::::-=--=····-;.-,__ -. ·-···---- -·-·· 

. . . HH Central Files in EOB 

. . . \.JH Central Files in NARS 

WU Staff Office Files_ (estimated) 

' I o 1-Jl-l Special Files (in vnul t:s) 

. ' . Other Materials in NARS courtesy storage (e ,g, ·CRP; 
I 

Audiovisual Materials (wr-rcA; NARS, and NPC) 

HH Photo Office (estimated) 

Government Publtcations at Suitland 

• • • Gift Materials in NARS 

---, .. -.. ---· -.,M----------------·- -···~-·-

In GSA CuGtocly 
·as of Sep 18 

6,908 

5,517 

2,244 

4,613 

1,~87 

168 

' 

Revised Estimate 
of Natcrials still 
to be received 

_Ex GSA:..----.---
0 

1,025_ 

1,600 

205(NPC) 

0 

2,830 

~31-;J79- (with 6, 000 cubic :Feet 
of gifts) 

·-



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

October 1, 1974 

MEMORANDUM FOR: H. STUART KNIGHT 

FROM: PIDLIP BUCHEq w. "iS. 
SUBJECT: Access to White House Files 

This is to authorize Mr. Jerry Jones to enter the room in the 
Executive Office Building where the Presidential tapes are 
stored and to locate and remove for review a copy of the 
tape for the Executive Office Building for April 19, 1973. 
Mr. Jones is also authorized to re-enter to replace the copy 
of the tape after the review is completed. The sole purpose 
for removal is to allow Herbert J. Miller. Jr. • attorney for 
Richard M. Nixon. to listen to the tape. 

cc: Jerry Jones 
J. Fred Buzhardt 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

October 9, 1974 

Miller, Cassidy, Larroca & Lewin 
1320 19th Street, N.· W. 
Fifth Floor 
Washington, D. c.· 

. Att~ntion: Mr. Herbert J. Miller, Jr. 

Gentlemen:. 

.. 

You have already been furnished, as I am told, with a copy of 
a Subpoena duces tecum directed to me and captioned 
United States of America v. John N. Mitchell, et al., D. D. C., 
Criminal No.· 74-llO, which was issued upon application of 
defendant John D. Ehrlichman.· I enclose an additional copy, 
reproduced from the original in my possession, to serve as notice 
of the subpoena to you and your client, the Honorable 
Richard M. Nixon, in accordance with paragraph 9B of the 
September 6, 1974, Agreement between your client and the 
Administrator, General Services Administration. 

The Agreement contemplates that your client will respond to any 
such subpoena.· So I trust that, if you intend to raise no timely 
objections in Court, you will work out timely and satisfactory 
arrangements for production of the documents, consistent with the 
present circumstances that the documents are still located here 
under appropriate safeguards.· Since the Agreement specifies that 
you will determine whether to object to production of materials, 
and will inform the United States if you determine not to object so 
that it may inspect the materials for the limited purpose stated 
in the Agreement,· I intend to take no action to quash the Subpoena 
duces tecum and will abide by any Court order as it may affect me. 

·Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

tf~~~ 
Counsel to the President 

bee: Larry Silberman 
Irving Jaffe 
Leon Jaworski 
Bill Cas selman 
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~E\·l 1 2/71 
·suhpoena to Prv:::~ce Document or Object c F .... 

=============::::;=r.=o=r=Yl2 _-_:a.~ 21 '(P.e·.-. :-:·-:3:_, 

FOR THE 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

U!>:ITED STATES OF A~IERICA 

v~ 

John N. Mitchell, et al 

To PHILIP BUCHEN 
The White House 
Washington, D. C. 

No. 74-110 

You are hereby commanded to appear in th? United States District Court for the 

District of Columbia at John Marshall & Constitution~ 

Washington, on the lst day of October~ 1974 at 9:30 

in the city of 

o'clock A.M. 

to testify in the case of United States v. Mitchell, et al~ and bring with you 

the documents and tapes described on the attached schedule. 

This subpoena is issued upon application of thel Defendant~ John D. Ehrlichman .. 

~-=:p~emb~_:_!~~• 19 7 4. 

An_c_!~_~w_C.~'t~1dant Ehrliclunan 
Twte¥1ffi.e11floo r ~ Concord Building 

-e -66--W-esLF.laglex: .Street 
" Mi~MI~88Florida 33130 

1 Insert "United States," or "defendant" as the ca.sP. may be. 

(3-05) 377-0241 

RETURN 

Received this subpoena at 
andon at 
served it on the within named 
by delivering a copy to h and tendering to h 
age allowed by law.2 

Dated: 

-------------------· 19 __ 
· Scrv!c~ Fees 

Tra-.-el 
Ser·,,lces 

---------------$ 

Total _________ :$ 

By __ 

on 

the fee for one day's attendance and the mile-

; 

--------------------~ ___ , 
" ..., 

\~ 
\;'tP 

'·-·---.. 

2 -~,tlll:: ~nri TYI~i"~?::to Y'!c.u:4 ~"'+-. ~'? +~'"!~~~~ ~0 ~~.-= ~:r:i~~e~.:: ~~;0!'! ~~!'":!~~ -::: _: ~~~;"~~!"::!. ~~:~::;~ ~'!""~ "'~h~.!: ~~ :~~ T ... r":"'~!:"~ ~~:-.:a:~ 
cr an of:icer or a_;~~ncy the!"e-Jf. 23 t'SC. 1S25. 

H 1--LK-3-H-52-120~!-998 



... 

'I It 
I' .I 
' 

:: ., 
!i 
II 
I' 
I 
'I 

It 
I 
'I 1: ., 
il 
!i . 
li 
:! 
1: 
li 
j1 
:, 
~ l 
!; 
f; 

II 
I' ,I 
j: 

lt 
I! 
'i 

.· 
F ,. 
,. 
ij 

: 
I 

II 

l. J .• ln. Eh rllc l J .. m 1 s } an-! ··ittcn r eport o f April 14 , 1973 of LLS 

inves tigatioT. o f\, c1 lerg t c and Watergate - related a. c tiviti s. 

2. A p ropos ed ne\vspap e r adve r t isement d c:i!ling wit h ·watergate 

allega tions and fac t s concerning those allegations , prepared sornetime 

b ehvecn the Demo c ratic National Conv ention and Labor Day, 1972. 

3. Not es of a draft statement dictated by then President Richard M. 

Nixon, waiving executive privilege. 

[Items 1 through 3 are located in a folder marked, 11 .April, 1973 

Watergate Notes 11
. ] 

4. Notes of Presidential conversations with John D. Ehrlichman for 

the following dates: 

November 27. 1972 

November 28, 1972 

November 30, 1972 

December 8, 1972 

December 11, 1972 

December 18, 1972 

February 7, 1973 

February 14, 1973 

February 16, 1973 

February 17, 1973 

February 23, 1973 

February 24, 1973 

February 27, 1973 

:Ma rch 17, 1973 

~Iarch 20 , 1973 

March 21, 1973 

:-,[a r c h 2 3, 1 <) 7 3 



Mard . 1973 i...o , , 

I 
Ma r ch 30 , 1973 

~ March ~ , 1973 

li Apr il 2 , 197 3 

~ 
.. 

April 3 , 197 3 

I 
I 

April 4 , 1973 

April 12, 1973 

April 15, 1973 

April 16, 1973 

April17, 1973 

April18, 1973 

April 19, 1973 

April 20, 1973 

April 25, 1973 

April 26, 1973 

A.pril 27_, 1973 

August 26, 1972 

November 1, 1972 

5. Memorandum .dated June 26 or 27, 1972 from the Central Intellige-ace 

Agency to the Federal Bureau of Investigation indicating the results 

of an intra agency review made by the Central Intelligence Agency 

as to the involvement of persons alleged to be connected with the 

'fl 

break in of Democratic National Headquarters. 

6 . The tape of the Presidential conversation on or about July 28, 1972 . 
II 
It wherein the President of the United States asked John Ehrlichman ,, 
1: 

I 

' 
1
1 

to cause a deposition to be tak en of Maudce Stans in lieu of testim.ony 

l 
I ,. 
II 
I 

by Mr. Stans before the Grand J ury. 

-2-
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II 7. 

'I !, 
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I 

ed by the Whitn I lnttse Com•n•m' ( ;o• ion" 

.A&~ency of a 11 ~~eting in th~ State Dining Room of the White House 

on Septcntb L' 12, 197 2. b, hvecn the Preside nt, Vice-President, 

l\.fcmbers of the Cabinet, Republican Congressional leacle t·ship, 

and White House Staff. 

•8 . All news summaries prepared by the White House for use by the 

., 
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ll ,, 
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I. ,, 
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I 
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II 
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d ,, 
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j .. 
I 
I ,, 
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President or the Presidential staff from June 17, 1972 to and 

including July 21, 1972. 

- -

-3-
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THE WHITE HOUSE: 
WASH)NG,.ON 

10/9/74 

Phil, 

Here is the language worked out 
by Irv Jaffe on the Ehrlichman 
subpoena. I have no prof>lem 

with it. f?v\J 
Bill Casselm.an 

/ 
./ 

/ 

,./ 
l' 



Honorable Richard M. Nixon 
San Clemente, California 

Dear Mr. Nixon: 

DRAFT 

I am enclosing a· copy of a Subpoena directed 
to me and captioned United States of America v. 
John N. Mitchell, et al., D. D.C., CrLm~nal No. 
74-110. This subpoena was issued upon application 
of defendant John D. Ehrlichman. 

In accordance with paragraph 9B of the 
September 6, 1974 Agreement between you and the 
Administrator, General Services Administration, I 
am notifying you of the enclosed Subpoena duces 
tecum so that you may respond thereto as you deem 
appropriate, in keeping with the Agreement. Since 
the Agreement specifies that you will determine whether 
to object to production of materials, and will inform 
the United States if you determine not to object so 
that it may inspect the materials, I intend to take 
no action to quash the Subpoena duces tecum and will 
abide by any Court order concerning the materials 
subpoenaed. 

Sincerely, 

PHILIP W. BUCHEN 
Counsel to the President 

cc: Herbert J. Miller, Esq. 
1320 19th Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 



WATERGATE SPECL'\L PP.OSECLJT!O~ FORC£ 
linited S:a~es Dcp3.~!J;;~n~ of Juslic:e 

1425 K St;.:et. l\.W. 
Washington. D.C. :?l/Xl5 

October 17, 1974 

William Casselman, II, Esq. 
Cow~sel to the President 
The ~vhi te House 
Washington, D. C. 

Dear Mr. Casselman: 

This is to confirm our telephone conver­
sations last evening during which you informed me 
that Herbert J. :rv'.tiller, Jr., cow'l.sel to former 
President Nixon, had indicated that he would file 
an action this morning seeking specific performance 
of the letter agreement between ¥~. Nixon and 
Arthur G. Sampson, Administrator of the General 
Se~vices Administration, dated September 7, 1974. 

You assured me that the tapes and docwuents 
compiled during the administration of former 
President Nixon, now stored in various areas of the 
Executive Office Building and within the physical 
control of Hr. Buchen, would not be moved pending a 
determination of any court proceedings relating to 
ownership and custody of the materials. It is my 
understanding that this assurance merely carries 
forward the agreement between this office and the 
\vhite House that the physical arrangements for the 
Nixon materials would not be changed, and the 
September 7 letter agreement would not be implemented 
penoing discussions-between this office and the White 
House concerning the Special Prosecutor's continuing 
interest in these materials for ongoing investigations 
and prosecutions. 

Sincerely, 

~,· roll'" 
l' <_:; <,..... \ 

0'' 
' ::u l 

PETER M. KREINDLER \'.;\ ~/ , - .,._,. 
Counse 1 to the '", , -..... ______ .. --

Special Prosecutor 

cc: ~hilip W. Buchen, Esq. 
Counsel to the President 



-- ~-

THE: 'vVH!TE HOUSE 

WASHINGTON 

October 25, 1974 

Dear Mr. Silberman: 

Service has been made upon me of the attached 
Subpoena duces tecum and check with respect 
to the case of Dellu.rns, et al., v. Powell, et al., 
D. D. C., Civil Action No. 2271-71. 

This is to request that the Department of Justice 
handle this matter on my behalf. If additional 
information or assistance is required, please 
contact William E. Casselman II of this office. 
I would appreciate very much your sending this 
~ffice copies of any materials you file with the 
Court in this matter. · 

Sincerely, 

Philip W. Buchen 
Counsel to the President 

Honorable Lawrence Silberman 
Deputy Attorney GeD:eral 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 

... 
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/ tl'l' CND!JitStM[tcT 1'tfiS CIHCII WH[N PAlO IS ACCCPT£0 

IN J"UJ..l I"AYIIffNT Of TH[ FOLlOWING '-CCOUNT 

OATE AMOUNT 

---------~-------*-----+~ 

'- If IPiCOffU'CT f'lf:45£ Rf1'UIIJ'f, NO R£Cfi"T N£C£5SARY 

L. 

LAW OFFICES or: 
MELROD, REDMAN & GARTLAN 

SUITE 1100-K 
1801 K STREET. N. W. 

WASHINGTON, D. C. 20006 Oct. 

No. 19456 

24 19.1.4_ 15-55 
540 

~
A'! 
TO TilE: 

OHDEROF Phili~~n~---_-_-________ --_-________ $ 21.00 

l 
• I l ,,••• •' t'' • 

J' ~ •.• ; , . •• .. . , •. • • · • • : • •• , ~:l· :• ... :1' 1.,.~a,) 
1 ., 'j'' 1••. 

----~··:::.··~~-~ . ....-.-::.:.·· .. ;_,,~~ .... :· ---"''"'-··'..,_:.-~-.. '""-'"'-·;__,_, ~~----"!':...' ,__: .:::'·:c..' _________ DOLI..A.RS 

MELROD, REDMAN & GARTLAN 

ll!lf AMERICAN SECURITY 
AND TRUST COMPANY 

~~/__~1 
"•:O SltOruOO 5 St: ~ 3111 8 58 ~lt8 3u• / _ ~ 

WASHINtlTON,O.C, 20013 

.. 
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Rectangle



llntll::O §faf£s ~isfrh:f Q.:ourt 
for the 

Disfrtd.: nf (!I:.olumbia 

HOK. RONALD V. DELLUMS, et al., 

Plaintiff. 

vs. C1V!L ACTION No. __ }_~2.J:_-:_2J:_ _________________ _ 
JA.l·~:SS H. POI;JELL, et al. , 

Defendant. 

To: PHILIP BUCHEN, Counsel to the Pre$ident 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------- ------------------- -------------------------- ------- ---- - ----

1/Jhite House, 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. ~~7., ~~iashington, D. C. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

You ~-\..RE HEREBY C011MANDED to appear i:!J (t~ffi.~tf*) (the office of --~1_J;;L.BQQ _ _,_ ___ ~QJfl,.bN ___ ~--------

GARTLAN, 1801 K Street, N.H., Suite llOOK, Washington, D. C. 20006 
. - ------------------------------------------------------------------,------- -------------) 

to give testimony in the above-entitled cause on the----~-~:':-_____ day of ----~?-~.~~-~~-~-------------------, 19.~-~--• 

at _]_.:_QQ ____ o'clock ~-= m. (and bring with you) --~-~~---~-~12~-~---~!::~ ___ :':-E ':~-~~-:-~!?-~-~--~~---~~-~:t:: _____ _ 
House conversations during the period of April 16 through May 10, 1971, __ _...___ ------------------------------------------~------------------------------------------------------------------

---------·-------
and do not depart without leave. 

Date _..Q.c..to_b.er..__2_4_, ___ 1TIA_ ________ _ 

Narren K. Kaplan 

Attorney for [ Plaintiff. S 
tmreMMi~ 

:e~:~:2:z___ ----------
Deputy Clerk. 

RETURN ON SERVICE 

Summoned the above-named witness by delivering a copy to h __________ and tendering to h _________ the fees 
for one day's attendance and mileage allowed by la •v, on the _________ -·--·- day of --------------------------------------------• 
19 ___ , at ___________________ --------------------------------______________________________________ _ 

Dated -------------------------------------------

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a ____ _ 
-------·---------------------------' 19--------

---------------------- -- -------------------------------~-- ----------------

·-----------------------·---···---·-· -----·· ... ·-- th.;;~·--F·O~q~~1111 ay of 
!IX ~ 

·~») ~/ 
- "'' --------------------------- ... -----·. ---------- --- --;---/--. ----

::\OTE.-.-\:1icavit rer;uired only if ser-vice is mane by a person other thaa a U.S. :\larshal or his deputy.'·--




